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List of Respondents and Non-Respondents to 2004 Tax Rates
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Note: All cities responded.

Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Cities
Alexandria Mr. Philip Leventhal 703/838-6487

Revenue Collection, Specialist IV
<www.alexandriava.gov>

Bedford Ms. Brenda A. Daniel 540/587-6052
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.bedfordva.gov>

Bristol Mr. Terry C. Frye 276/645-7316
Commissioner of the Revenue

Buena Vista Ms. Mar Vita L. A. Flint 540/261-8611
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.buenavistavirginia.org>

Charlottesville Mr. Raymond Lee Richards 434/970-3160
Commissioner of the Revenue

Chesapeake Mr. Ray A. Conner 757/382-6620
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.cityofchesapeake.net>

Colonial Heights Ms. Catherine B. Parker 804/520-9281
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.colonial-heights.com>

Covington Ms. Margaret P. Phillips 540/965-6352
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.covington.va.us>

Danville Mr. James M. Gillie 434/799-5145
Commissioner of the Revenue

Emporia Ms. Joyce E. Prince 434/634-5405
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.emporia.va.us>

Fairfax Ms. Linda L. Leightley 703/385-7884
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.fairfax.va.us>

Falls Church Mr. Thomas D. Clinton 703/248-5023
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.falls-church.va.us>

Franklin Ms. Brenda B. Rickman 757/562-8548
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.franklinva.com>

Fredericksburg Ms. Lois B. Jacob 540/372-1004
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.fredericksburg.com>

Galax Mr. David Hankley 276/236-2528
Commissioner of the Revenue

Hampton Ms. Nancy R. Strickland 757/728-5023
Chief Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.hampton.gov>

Harrisonburg Ms. June Hosaflook 540/432-7704
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.harrisonburg.va.us>
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Cities (continued)

Note: All cities responded.

Hopewell Ms. Debra Kloske Reason 804/541-2237
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.hopewell.va.us>

Lexington Ms. Karen T. Roundy 540/462-3754
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.lexington.va.us>

Lynchburg Mr. Mitchell W. Nuckles 434/455-3871
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.lynchburg.va.gov>

Manassas Mr. John P. Grzejka 703/257-8220
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.manassascity.org>

Manassas Park Ms. Debra Wood 703/335-8827
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.cityofmanassaspark.org>

Martinsville Ms. Ruth L. Easley 276/656-5130
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.martinsville.va.us>

Newport News Ms. Valerie Gains 757/247-2628
Supervisor
<www.nngov.com>

Norfolk Ms. Shelby W. Harrod, Sr. 757/441-2271
Chief Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.norfolk.gov>

Norton Ms. Judy K. Miller 276/679-0031
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.nortonva.org>

Petersburg Ms. Mary C. Massey 804/733-2315
Commissioner of the Revenue

Poquoson Mr. Graham P. Wilson 757/868-3020
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.poquoson.va.us>

Portsmouth Mr.  A. James Fillion 757/393-8700
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.portsmouthva.gov>

Radford Ms. Kathy Flinchum 540/731-3613
Commissioner of the Revenue

Richmond Mr. L. Kevin Ervin 804/646-6452
Revenue Manager
<www.richmondgov.com>

Roanoke Mr. Sherman A. Holland 540/853-2521
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.roanokegov.com>

Salem Ms. Linda A. Carroll 540/375-3019
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.salem.va.us>

Staunton Ms. C. Robert Stripling 540/332-3812
City Manager
<www.staunton.va.us>

Suffolk Ms. Maria R. Kattmann 757/923-2403
Real Estate Assessor
<www.suffolk.va.us>

Virginia Beach Mr. Eric T. Schmudde 757/427-8012
Chief Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.vbgov.com>

Waynesboro Ms. Donald R. Coffey 540/942-6612
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.waynesboro.va.us>
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Cities (continued)

Note: All cities and counties responded.

Williamsburg Ms. Judy Nightengale Fuqua 757/220-6150
Commissioner of the Revenue

Winchester Mr. John G. Russell, III 540/667-1815
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.ci.winchester.va.us>

Counties
Accomack Mr. George N. Fulk 757/787-5747

Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.accomack.va.us>

Albemarle Ms. Brenda K. Neitz 434/296-5855
Fiscal Assistant
<www.albermarle.org>

Alleghany Ms. Valerie N. Bruffey 540/863-6640
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.alleghany.va.us>

Amelia Ms. Joyce D. Morris 804/561-2158
Commissioner of the Revenue

Amherst Ms. Linda M. Buyers 434/946-9310
Commissioner of the Revenue

Appomattox Ms. Sara Henderson 434/352-7450
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue

Arlington Ms. Lorena Lester 703/228-3026
Management  Specialist
<www.co.arlington.va.us>

Augusta Ms. W. Jean Shrewsbury 540/245-5640
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.augusta.va.us>

Bath Ms. Leta G. Norfleet 540/839-7231
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.bathcountyva.org>

Bedford Ms. Faye W. Eubank 540/586-7621
Commissioner of the Revenue

Bland Ms. Cindy Wright 276/688-4291
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.bland.org>

Botetourt Mr. John L. �Jay� Etzler, V 540/473-8270
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.botetourt.va.us>

Brunswick Ms. Wanda J. Beville 434/848-2313
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.brunswickco.com>

Buchanan Mr. Victor  V. Breeding 276/935-6545
Commissioner of the Revenue

Buckingham Ms. Linda S. Baird 434/969-4181
Commissioner of the Revenue

Campbell Ms. Marge H. Cartwright 434/332-9517
Administrative Assistant
<www.co.campbell.va.us>

Caroline Ms. Christine Sawyer 804/633-9835
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.caroline.va.us>

Carroll Ms. Louise L. Quesenberry 276/728-2331
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.carroll.va.us>

Charles City Ms. Denise B. Smith 804/829-9216
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.charles-city.va.us>
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Counties (continued)

Note: All counties responded.

Charlotte Ms. Sandra K. Elgin 434/542-5546
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.charlotte.va.us>

Chesterfield Mr. Joseph A. Moore 804/748-1368
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.chesterfield.gov>

Clarke Mr. Warren A. Arthur 540/955-5187
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.clarke.va.us>

Craig Ms. Elizabeth C. Huffman 540/864-6241
Commissioner of the Revenue

Culpeper Mr. Barry Atchison 540/727-3443
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.culpepercounty.gov>

Cumberland Ms. Anita H. French 804/492-4280
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.cumberlandfirst.net/government>

Dickenson Mr. Ronnie Lee Robbins 276/926-1646
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.dickensonctyva.com>

Dinwiddie Ms. Lori K. Stevens 804/469-4507
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.dinwiddieva.us>

Essex Ms. Mabel D. Franklin 804/443-4575
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.essex-virginia.org>

Fairfax Mr. Joseph W. Blackwell, Jr. 703/324-3866
Director, Department of Tax Administration
<www.fairfaxcounty.gov>

Fauquier Mr. Ross W. D�Urso 540/347-8622
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.fauquiercounty.gov>

Floyd Ms. Maggie H. Sutphin 540/745-9345
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.fin.org>

Fluvanna Mr. Andrew M. Sheridan, Jr. 434/591-1940
Commissioner of the Revenue

Franklin Ms. Judy S. Crook 540/483-3083
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.franklincountyva.org>

Frederick Ms. Ellen E. Murphy 540/665-5681
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.frederick.va.us>

Giles Ms. Anne C. Chambers 540/921-3321
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.gilescounty.org>

Gloucester Ms. Kevin A. Wilson 804/693-3451
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.gloucesterva.info>

Goochland Ms. Jean S. Bryant 804/556-5307
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.goochland.va.us>

Grayson Ms. Debra P. Hensley 276/773-2381
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.graysoncountyva.com>

Greene Mr. Larry V. Snow 434/985-5211
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.gcva.us>
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Counties (continued)

Note: All counties responded.

Greensville Ms. Martha S. Swenson 434/348-4209
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.greensvillecountyva.gov>

Halifax Mr. Danny F. Jackson 434/476-3314
Commissioner of the Revenue

Hanover Ms. Karen R. Winston 804/365-6131
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.hanover.va.us>

Henrico Ms. Reta R. Busher 804/501-4266
Director of Finance
<www.co.henrico.va.us>

Henry Ms. Lucy W. Clark 276/634-4687
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.henry.va.us>

Highland Ms. Bobbie J. Griffin 540/468-2142
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.highlandcova.org>

Isle of Wight Ms. Janice A. Hardison 757/365-6222
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.isle-of-wight.va.us>

James City Mr. Richard W. Bradshaw 757/253-6695
Commissioner of the Revenue

King &  Queen Ms. Helen H. Longest 804/785-5976
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.kingandqueenco.net>

King George Ms. Faye W. Lumpkin 540/775-4664
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.king-george.va.us>

King William Ms. Sally W. Pearson 804/769-4941
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.kingwilliamcounty.us>

Lancaster Mr. George E. Thomas, Jr. 804/462-7920
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.lancova.com>

Lee Ms. Susan C. Cope 276/346-7722
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue

Loudoun Mr. Robert S. Wertz. Jr. 703/777-0667
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.loudoun.gov>

Louisa Ms. Nancy M. Pleasants 540/967-3432
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.louisacounty.com>

Lunenburg Ms. Patricia M. Adams 434/696-2516
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.lunenburgva.org>

Madison Ms. Gale L. Harris 540/948-4421
Commissioner of the Revenue

Mathews Mr. Raymond A. Hunley 804/725-7168
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.mathews-county.com>

Mecklenburg Mr. William N. Bracey 434/738-6191
Commissioner of the Revenue

Middlesex Ms. Mary Lou Ebinger 804/758-5332
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.middlesex.va.us>

Montgomery Ms. Sharon E. Gilbert 540/382-5710
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.montva.com>
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Counties (continued)

Note: All counties responded.

Nelson Ms. Jean W. Payne 434/263-7070
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.nelsoncounty.com>

New Kent Mr. John Crump 804/966-9610
Commissioner of the Revenue
Ms. Mary Altemus 804/966-9694
Director of Accounting and Budget

Northampton Ms. Anne G. Sayers 757/678-0446
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.northampton.co.va.us>

Northumberland Mr. Todd E. Thomas 804/580-4600
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.northumberlandcounty.com>

Nottoway Mr. Irving J. Arnold 434/645-9317
Commissioner of the Revenue

Orange Ms. Donna H. Chewning 540/672-4441
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.orangecova.com>

Page Mr. Charles L. Campbell 540/743-5295
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.page.va.us>

Patrick Ms. Janet H. Rorrer 276/694-7131
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.patrick.va.us>

Pittsylvania Ms. Peggy L. Crawley 434/432-7956
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.pittgov.org>

Powhatan Ms. Cheryl Jessie 804/598-5617
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue

Prince Edward Ms. Beverly M. Lee 434/392-3231
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.prince-edward.va.us>

Prince George Ms. Virginia T. Duncan 804/733-2626
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.princegeorgeva.org>

Prince William Ms. Allison Lindner 703/792-6780
Real Estate Assessments Division Chief
<www.pwcgov.org>

Pulaski Mr. John Jaygill 540/980-7750
Chief Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue

Rappahannock Ms. Beverly S. Atkins 540/675-5370
Commissioner of the Revenue

Richmond Mrs. Alzerine S. Headley 804/333-5062
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.richmond.va.us>

Roanoke Ms. Laura Shelton 540/772-2046
Real Estate Supervisor ext. 109
<www.roanokecountyva.gov>

Rockbridge Mr.  David C. Whitesell 540/463-3431
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.rockbridge.va.us>

Rockingham Mr. Richard E. Connellee 540/564-3061
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.rockinghamcountyva.gov>

Russell Mr. Randy N. Williams 276/889-8018
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.russell.k12.va.us/cor>
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Note: All counties responded. Non-respondent towns or towns that returned the questionnaire too late to be included in the report
are shown in italics.

Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Counties (continued)
Scott Mr. Gary W. Baker 276/386-7692

Commissioner of the Revenue
Shenandoah Ms. Kathleen Black 540/459-6170

Commissioner of the Revenue
Smyth Mr. Jeffrey T. Richardson 276/782-4040

Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.amythcounty.org>

Southampton Mr. John R. Harrup 757/653-3030
Commissioner of the Revenue
<wwwsouthamptoncounty.org>

Spotsylvania Ms. Deborah Williams 540/582-7046
Commissioner of the Revenue ext. 648
<www.spotsylvania.va.us>

Stafford Mr. Scott A. Mayauski 540/658-4132
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.stafford.va.us>

Surry Ms. Norma G. Roach 757/294-5226
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.co.surry.va.us>

Sussex Ms. Ellen G. Boone 434/246-5511
Commissioner of the Revenue ext. 3222

Tazewell Ms. Deborah Barrett 276/988-1232
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.tazwellcounty.org>

Warren Ms. Sherry T. Sours 540/635-2651
Chief Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.warrencountyva.net>

Washington Mr. G. Melvin Ritchie 276/676-6270
Commissioner of the Revenue

Westmoreland Ms. Carol B. Gawen 804/493-9052
Commissioner of the Revenue

Wise Mr. Douglas Mullins, Jr. 276/328-3556
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.wisecounty.org>

Wythe Ms. Mary N. Cassell 276/223-6015
Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.wythecoy.org>

York Ms. Sheree L. Fox 757/890-3381
Chief Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue
<www.yorkcounty.gov>

Towns
Abingdon Mr. Mark W. Godbey 276/628-3167

Washington County Director of Finance
<www.abingdon.com>

Accomac Ms. Andrea J. Derby 757/787-2623
Accomack County Town Clerk

Alberta Ms. Melissa Parrish 434/949-7443
Brunswick County Mayor

Altavista Mr. W. Morgan Allen, Jr. 434/369-5002
Campbell County Director of Finance & Administration

<www.ci.altavista.va.us>
Amherst Ms. Elizabeth R. Johnson 434/946-7885

Amherst County Treasurer
Appalachia Ms. Jocoyn Ellis 540/565-3900

Wise County Town Clerk/Treasurer
Appomattox Mr. Ronald C. Spiggle 804/352-8268

Appomattox County Mayor
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Towns (continued)

Note: Non-respondent towns or towns that returned the questionnaire too late to be included in the report are shown in italics.

Ashland Mr. Harold W. Mitchell 804/798-8650
Hanover County Treasurer

<www.townofashland.va.us>
Belle Haven Mr. Hal Floyd 757/442-2444

Accomack and Town Clerk
Northampton counties

Berryville Ms. Desiree A. Moreland 540/955-1099
Clarke County Assistant Town Manager/Treasurer

Big Stone Gap Ms. Joyce M. Page 276/523-0115
Wise County Town Clerk/Treasurer ext.101

<www.bigstonegap.org>
Blacksburg Ms. Susan H. Kaiser 540/961-1109

Montgomery County Director of Finance
<www.blacksburg.gov>

Blackstone Ms. Joan R. Palmore 804/292-7251
Nottoway County Town Clerk

Bloxom Mr. Robert Barnes 757/665-4785
Accomack County Town Clerk/Treasurer

Bluefield Mr. James E. Hampton 276/322-4628
Tazewell County Treasurer

<www.bluefieldonline.net>
Boones Mill Ms. Colleen Hart 540/334-5404

Franklin County Town Treasurer/Clerk
Bowling Green Ms. Kathy McVay 804/633-6212

Caroline County Treasurer
<www.town.bowling-green.va.us>

Boyce Mr. Arhur Clarke 540/837-2901
Clarke County Town Clerk/Recorder

Boydton Ms. Shirley S. Bowen 434/738-6344
Mecklenburg County Clerk/Treasurer

<www.boydton.org>
Boykins Ms. Erma N. Scott 757/654-6361

Southampton County Town Clerk
Branchville Mr. Arthur B. Harris, Jr. 757/654-9420

Southampton County Mayor
Bridgewater Ms. Cherie N. Bowen 540/828-6980

Rockingham County Treasurer
<www.town.bridgewater.va.us>

Broadway Mr. Kyle D. O�Brien 540/896-5152
Rockingham County Town Manager

<www.town.broadway.va.us>
Brodnax Mr. J. Woodrow Kidd 434/729-3191

Brunswick and Clerk/Treasurer
Mecklenburg counties

Brookneal Ms. Lauri C. Francis 804/376-3124
Campbell County Town Clerk/Treasurer

<www.townofbrookneal.com>
Buchanan Ms. Nancy Lorton 540/254-1212

Botetourt County Office Clerk
Burkeville Ms. Sandra C. Myers 434/767-4095

Nottoway County Clerk/Treasurer
Cape Charles Ms. Patricia Buckley 757/331-3259

Northampton County Treasurer
<www.capecharles.org>

Capron Ms. Dianna L. Sexton 434/658-4275
Southampton County Secretary

Cedar Bluff Mr. James K. McGlothlin 276/964-4889
Tazewell County Town Manager
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Towns (continued)

Note: Non-respondent towns or towns that returned the questionnaire too late to be included in the report are shown in italics.

Charlotte Court House Ms. Karen Price 434/542-5781
Charlotte County Town Clerk/Treasurer

Chase City Ms. Cynthia Gordon 434/372-5136
Mecklenburg County Administrative Assistant

Chatham Mr. J. David Cothran 434/432-8153
Pittsylvaina County Town Clerk/Treasurer

Cheriton Mr.  Robert K. Lewis 757-331-1126
Northampton County Mayor

Chilhowie Ms. Marlene L. Henderson 276/646-3232
Smyth County Clerk/Treasurer

<www.chilhowie.org>
Chincoteague Ms. Karen Hipple 757/336-6519

Accomack County Finance Director
<www.chincoteage-va.gov>

Christiansburg Mr. Clay McCoy 540/382-6128
Montgomery County Assistant Town Manager

<www.christiansburg.org>
Claremont Ms. Heather S. Hunnicutt 757/866-8427

Surry County Clerk/Treasurer
Clarksville Ms. Tara Murphy 434/374-8177

Mecklenburg County Treasurer/Clerk
Cleveland Ms. Jennifer Sykes 276/889-4365

Russell and Town Clerk
Washington counties

Clifton Ms. Marilyn L. Barton 703/841-7768
Fairfax County Treasurer

Clifton Forge Ms. LeeAnna Tyler 540/863-2503
Alleghany County Director of Finance

<www.ci.clifton-forge.va.us>
Clinchco Ms. Shelba Mullins 276/835-1160

Dickenson County Town Clerk
Clinchport Ms. Billie Page 276/386-9261

Scott County Mayor
Clintwood Ms. Judy Steele 276/926-8383

Dickenson County Clerk
<www.clintwood.virginia.com>

Coeburn Ms. Sherry B. Bise 276/395-3323
Wise County Clerk/Treasurer

<www.coeburnva.org>
Colonial Beach Mr. Bobby Duke, Jr. 804/224-7705

Westmoreland County Town Treasurer
Columbia Mr. Jay Anderson 434/842-2277

Fluvanna County Mayor
Courtland Ms. Debra J. Lambert 757/653-2222

Southampton County Town Recorder
Craigsville Ms. Helen W. Cauley 540/997-5935

Augusta County Clerk/Treasurer
Crewe Ms. Ann J. Craig 434/645-9453

Nottoway County Bookkeeper
Culpeper Ms. Patricia F. Jenkins 540/829-8222

Culpeper County Acting Town Treasurer
<www.culpeper.to>

Damascus Ms. Shirley Brand 276/475-3405
Washington County Town Treasurer

<www.damascus.org>
Dayton Ms. Brenda Stearn 540/879-2241

Rockingham County Secretary
<www.townofdayton.va.us>
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Towns (continued)

Note: Non-respondent towns or towns that returned the questionnaire too late to be included in the report are shown in italics.

Dendron Ms. Nancy G. Shope 757/267-2508
Surry County Clerk/Treasurer

Dillwyn Ms. Peggy N. Johnson 434/983-2076
Buckingham County Clerk/Treasurer

Drakes Branch Ms. Mary Sands 434/568-3091
Charlotte County Town Clerk

Dublin Ms. Rebecca J. Lineberry 540/674-4731
Pulaski County Treasurer

<www.dublintown.org>
Duffield Mr. R. Gerald Miller 276/431-1777

Scott County Mayor
Dumfries Mr. Retta S. Ladd 703/221-3400

Prince William County Deputy Town Clerk/Treasurer
<www.dumfriesvirginia.org>

Dungannon Ms. Carol L. Cozart 276/467-2522
Scott County Clerk/Treasurer

Eastville Mr. James Sturgis 757/678-5183
Northampton County Councilman

Edinburg Ms. Doris F. Stover 540/984-8521
Shenandoah County Clerk/Treasurer

Elkton Ms. Faye Vickers 540/298-9465
Rockingham County Clerk/Treasurer

Exmore Ms. Katrina Hickman 757/442-3114
Northampton County Town Clerk

Farmville Ms. Carol Anne Seal 804/392-3333
Prince Edward County Treasurer

<www.farmvilleva.com>
Fincastle Ms. Joan Boothe 540/473-2200

Botetourt County Office Assistant
Floyd Ms. Karen Y. Hodges 504/745-2565

Floyd County Clerk /Treasurer
Fries Ms. Janet L. Dooley 276/744-2231

Grayson County Clerk/Treasurer
Front Royal Ms. Kim Gilkey-Breeden 540/635-7799

Warren County Deputy Director of Finance
<www.ci.front-royal.va.us>

Gate City Mr. Matthew Horton 276/386-3831
Scott County Town Manager

Glade Spring Ms. Louise D. Taylor 540/429-5134
Washington County Town Treasurer

Glasgow Mr. Drew Havens 540/258-2246
Rockbridge County Town Manager

www.glasgowvirginia.org
Glen Lyn Mr. J. Howard Spencerl 540/726-7075

Giles County Town Manager
Gordonsville Ms. Ethel Hutchinson 540/832-2233

Orange County Clerk/Treasurer
Goshen Ms. Bobbie J. Thornsbury 540/997-5545

Rockbridge County Town Clerk
Gretna Ms. Margaret M. Midkiff 434/656-6572

Pittsylvania County Treasurer/Clerk
<www.townofgretna.com>

Grottoes Ms. Rhonda Danner 540/249-5896
Augusta and Treasurer
Rockingham counties

Grundy Ms. Marshell Clevinger 540/935-2551
Buchanan County Town Secretary
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Towns (continued)

Note: Non-respondent towns or towns that returned the questionnaire too late to be included in the report are shown in italics.

Halifax Mr. Carl Espy, IV 434/476-2343
Halifax County Town Manager

Hallwood Ms. Nancy Russell 757/787-3200
Accomack County Town Clerk

Hamilton Mr. Vadah Barney McCann 540/338-2811
Loudoun County Treasurer

www.town.hamilton.va.us
Haymarket Ms. Jennifer Preli 703/754-2600

Prince William County Town Clerk
Haysi Ms. Barbara Owens 276/865-5187

Dickenson County Town Clerk
Herndon Ms. Mary J. Tuohy 703/435-6810

Fairfax County Director of Finance
www.herndon-va.gov

Hillsboro Mr. Steve Morgard 540/668-6639
Loudoun County Mayor

Hillsville Ms. Judith Bolt 276/728-2128
Carroll County Administrative Assistant

www2.institute.virginia.edu/hillsville
Honaker Ms. Cyndi Hale 276/873-6556

Russell County Clerk/Treasurer
Hurt Ms. Linda L. East 434/324-4411

Pittsylvania County Treasurer/Town Manager
Independence Ms. Becky Felts 540/773-3703

Grayson County Billing Clerk
Iron Gate Ms. Joyce N. Aldridge 540/862-0770

Alleghany County Clerk
Irvington Ms. Jacqueline H. Burrell 804/438-6230

Lancaster County Town Clerk
Ivor Mr. Merle Monahan 757/859-6397

Southampton County Town Clerk
Jarratt Ms. Kim F. Gregory 804/535-8865

Greensville and Clerk/Treasurer
Sussex counties

Jonesville Mr. Beryle Greer 540/346-1151
Lee County Mayor

Keller Ms. Susan S. Smith 757/787-7166
Accomack County Town Clerk

Kenbridge Ms. Barbara S. Herndon 434/676-2452
Lunenburg County Treasurer

Keysville Ms. Sharon M. Layne 804/736-9551
Charlotte County Clerk/Treasurer

Kilmarnock Ms. Jacqueline L. Blencowe 804/435-1552
Lancaster and Town Clerk
Northumberland counties www.townofkilmarnockva.com

La Crosse Ms. Ernestine T. Evans 434/757-7366
Mecklenburg County Clerk/Treasurer

www.lacrosseva.org
Lawrenceville Ms. Alice B. Talbert 434/848-2414

Brunswick County Clerk/Treasurer
www.lawrencevilleweb.com

Lebanon Ms. Ann Clark 276/889-7200
Russell County Deputy Treasurer

Leesburg Mr. Norman D. Butts 703/771-2720
Loudoun County Director of Finance

www.leesburgva.org
Louisa Mr. George T. Hayfield 540/967-1400

Louisa County Town Manager
www.louisatown.org
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Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Towns (continued)

Note: Non-respondent towns or towns that returned the questionnaire too late to be included in the report are shown in italics.

Lovettsville Mr. Lawrence Gladstone 540/822-5788
Loudoun County Town Treasurer

Luray Ms. Cynthia Bushey 540/743-5511
Page County Clerk/Treasurer

<www.townofluray.com>
Madison Ms. Barbara A. Roach 540/948-3202

Madison County Town Clerk/Treasurer
Marion Ms. Dixie O. Sheets 276/783-4113

Smyth County Town Clerk/Director of Finance
<www.marionva.org>

McKenney Mr.  Charles T. Mansfield 804/478-4621
Dinwiddie County Mayor

Melfa Ms. Denise Bendick 757/787-7264
Accomack County Mayor

Middleburg Ms. Elizabeth E. Wolford 540/687-5152
Loudoun County Treasurer

<www.middleburg.org>
Middletown Ms. Patricia J. Mullins 540/869-2226

Frederick County Municipal Clerk/Treasurer
<www.middletown.va.us>

Mineral Mr. Jim Candeto 540/894-5100
Louisa County Town Manager

<www.louisa.net/mineral>
Monterey Ms. Nancy H. Hooke 540/468-2472

Highland County Town Clerk
Montross Ms. Brenda T. Reamy 804/493-9623

Westmoreland County Town Manager
Mount Crawford Ms. Mary Hilton-Geisler 540/434-1121

Rockingham County Clerk
Mount Jackson Ms. Judy L. Fultz 540/477-2121

Shenandoah County Clerk/Treasurer
<www.mountjackson.com>

Narrows Ms. Linda M. McGlothlin 540/726-2423
Giles County Town Treasurer/Clerk

<www.townofnarrows.org>
Nassawadox Ms. Paula Mills 757/442-2839

Northampton County Clerk
New Castle Ms. Nina Davis 540/864-5380

Craig County Clerk
New Market Ms. Samantha C. Conley 540/740-3432

Shenandoah County Town Treasurer
<www.newmarketvirginia.com>

Newsoms Ms. Bernice W. Ellis 757/654-6731
Southampton County Clerk

Nicklesville Ms. Judy Flanary 276/479-2033
Scott County Town Clerk

Occoquan Ms. Claudia A. Cruise 703/491-1918
Fairfax and Town Clerk
Prince William counties

Onancock Ms. Susan D. Scott 757/787-3363
Accomack County Town Manager

www.onancock.com
Onley Ms. Elizabeth Bell 757/787-3985

Accomack County Clerk/Treasurer
Orange Ms. Carolyn L. Tusing 540/672-1020

Orange County Treasurer
Painter Ms. Betty L. Mears 302/846-3036

Accomack County Town Clerk
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Appendix B (continued)
Locality Name/Title/Website Telephone
Towns (continued)
Pamplin Ms. Debbie B. Happel 434/248-6514

Appomattox and Clerk/Treasurer
Prince Edward counties

Parksley Ms. Denise L. Bernard 757/665-4618
Accomack County Town Clerk

Pearisburg Mr. Kenneth F. Vittum 540/921-0340
Giles County Town Manager

<www.pearisburg.org>
Pembroke Ms. Sherley Price 540/626-7191

Giles County Town Manager
Pennington Gap Ms.Tina M. Rowe 276/546-1177

Lee County Treasurer
<www.townofpennington.com>

Phenix Ms. Norma Evans 434/542-4123
Charlotte County Clerk/Treasurer

Pocahontas Mr. Gregory S. Jones 276/945-9522
Tazewell County Treasurer

Port Royal Ms. M. Therese Harrison 804/742-5331
Caroline County Town Clerk/Treasurer

Pound Ms. Joan E. Fleming 276/796-5188
Wise County Clerk/Treasurer

Pulaski Ms. Karen Gregory 540/994-8644
Pulaski County Tax Clerk

<www.pulaskitown.org>
Purcellville Ms. Jennifer Moore 540/338-7092

Loudoun County Town Clerk
<www.town.purcellville.va.us>

Quantico Ms. Deborah Kidwell 703/640-7411
Prince William County Treasurer

Remington Ms. Lydia L. Edwards 540/439-3220
Fauquier County Town Clerk

Rich Creek Ms. Pamela J. Kantsios 540/726-3260
Giles County Town Clerk

Richlands Ms. Sue Wade 276/964-2566
Tazewell County Office Manager

<www.town.richlands.va.us>
Ridgeway Ms. Alice J. Turner 540/956-2328

Henry County Bookkeeper
Rocky Mount Ms. Linda Woody 540/483-5243

Franklin County Director of Finance
<www.rockymountva.org>

Round Hill Ms. Karen Kirk 540/338-7878
Loudoun County Town Treasurer

<www.roundhillva.gov>
Rural Retreat Mr. Raymond Matney 276/686-4221

Wythe County Town Manager
<www.townofruralretreat.com>

Saint Charles Ms. Sharon Kimberlin 540/383-4545
Lee County Town Manager

Saint Paul Ms. Kathy Chafin 276/762-5297
Wise County Treasurer

<www.stpaulvirginia.org>
Saltville Ms. Shirley Brand 276/496-5342

Smyth and Clerk/Treasurer
Washington counties <www.damascus.org>

Saxis Ms. Mary C. Miles 757/824-5812
Accomack County Town Clerk/Treasurer
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Note: Non-respondent towns or towns that returned the questionnaire too late to be included in the report are shown in italics.

Scottsburg Ms. Susan Franklin 434/454-7459
Halifax County Town Clerk/Treasurer

Scottsville Mr. Barry Clark 434/286-9267
Albemarle and Town Administrator
Fluvanna counties <www.scottsville.org>

Shenandoah Ms. Cindy M. Breeden 540/652-8164
Page County Town Treasurer

<www.townofshenadoah.com>
Smithfield Ms. Ellen D. Minga 757/365-4200

Isle of Wight County Treasurer
<www.co.smithfield.va.us>

South Boston Mr. S.V. Saunders 434/575-4210
Halifax County Director of Finance

<www.southboston.com>
South Hill Mr. A. Kimball Callis 434/447-3191

Mecklenburg County Director of Finance
<www.southhillva.org>

Stanardsville Ms. Doris J. Comer 804/985-8494
Greene County Town Clerk

Stanley Ms. Elaine M. Knight 540/778-3454
Page County Assistant Town Manager

Stephens City Ms. Kathy Monk 540/869-3087
Frederick County Town Clerk

<www.stephenscityva.org>
Stony Creek Ms. Nancy C. Lacerte 434/246-6601

Sussex County Town Clerk/Secretary
Strasburg Ms. Dottie Mullens 540/465-9197

Shenandoah County Town Clerk
<www.strasburgva.com>

Stuart Ms. Susan C. Slate 276/694-3811
Patrick County Town Clerk/Treasurer

Surry Ms. Molly L. Rickmond 757/294-3021
Surry County Clerk

Tangier Mr. William B. Reynolds 757/891-2438
Accomack County Town Manager

Tappahannock Mr. G. G. Belfield, Jr. 804/443-3336
Essex County Town Manager

Tazewell Ms. Linda S. Griffith 276/988-2502
Tazewell County Treasurer/Clerk

The Plains Ms. Nancy E. Brady 540/364-4945
Faquier County Clerk/Treasurer

Timberville Ms. Wilda Wine 540/896-7058
Rockingham County Clerk/Treasurer

Toms Brook Ms. Thelma Stickler 540/436-3397
Shenandoah County Clerk/Treasurer

Troutdale Mr. Scott Booth 540/783-5103
Botetourt County Town Manager

Troutville Ms. Mary Jane Newcomb 540/992-4401
Botetourt County Town Clerk

Urbanna Ms. Gina R. Daniel 804/758-2613
Middlesex County Town Clerk

Victoria Ms. Sharon G. Elam 434/696-2343
Lunehburg County Town Treasurer
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Note: Non-respondent towns or towns that returned the questionnaire too late to be included in the report are shown in italics.

Vienna Mr. Philip Grant 703/255-6320
Fairfax County Director of Finance

<www.ci.vienna.va.us>

Vinton Ms. Kim D. Burgess 540/983-0608
Roanoke County Director of Finance/Treasurer

<www.town.vinton.va.us>

Virgilina Ms. Mamie Tuck 434/585-2602
Halifax County Clerk/Treasurer

Wachapreague Ms. Diana F. Brown 757/789-7117
Accomack County Town Clerk

Wakefield Ms. Rosalie S. Drewry 757/899-2361
Sussex County Treasurer

Warrenton Mr. Richard M. Heartley 540/347-1101
Fauquier County Deputy Finance Director

<www.warrentonva.gov>

Warsaw Ms. Jane H. Mahan 804/333-3737
Richmond County Town Clerk/Treasurer

Washington Ms. Laura Dodd 540/675-3128
Rappahannock County Administrative Assistant

Waverly Ms. Pamela D. Diehl 804-834-2330
Sussex County Treasurer

Weber City Ms. JoRetta Smith 540/386-7201
Scott County Town Clerk

West Point Ms. Letrecia F. Moore 804/843-3330
King William County Town Clerk

<www.west-point.va.us>

White Stone Mr. Lloyd Hubbard, Jr. 804/435-3260
Lancaster County Mayor

Windsor Ms. Patricia M. Mann 757/242-4288
Isle of Wight County Town Clerk/Treasurer

<www.windsor-va.gov>

Wise Ms. Robin M. Bryant 276/328-6013
Wise County Treasurer

Woodstock Ms. Deann Ebersole 540/459-3621
Shenandoah County Treasurer

Wytheville Mr. Michael G. Stephens 276/228-3333
Wythe County Treasurer

<www.wytheville.org>


